TopSolid'Wood 2011: What's New



© 2011, Missler Software. 7, Rue du Bois Sauvage F-91055 Evry, FRANCE Web: <u>http://www.topsolid.com</u> E-mail: <u>info@topsolid.com</u> All rights reserved.

Information is subject to change without notice. No material may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose without the express written permission of Missler Software.

TopSolid ® is a registered trademark of Missler Software.

TopSolid ® is a product name of Missler Software.

The information and the software discussed in this document are subject to change without notice and should not be considered commitments by Missler Software.

The software discussed in this document is furnished under a license and may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of this license.

Table of contents

Table of contents	3
Part definition- Identical coordinate systems	4
Define part on a component	6
Multiple part types	7
Improvement of woods configurator	8
Visibility of single unit components in selection windows	.10
Panel on profile	.11
Panel improvements	.12
Over dimensions for panel supports	.13
Turning from a sketch	.14
Insert of extruded components	.15
Improvement of the constrained block	.16
Automatic assembly	.17
Nonlinear assembly	.20
Blum library	.21
Assembly simplification	.25
Draft file name	.26
Owner designation and reference for in-place parts	.27
File name recovery for the 2 nd machining file name	.28
Operations priority for machining and exports	.29
Design – Parameters improvements	.31
Design – Automatic reference (TopSolid'Quote need this)	.33
Design – Publishings	.34
Design – Database material	.34
Nesting – Supports selection	.35
Nesting – Boards management	.36
Nesting – Many improvements	.36
Draft improvements / Exceptions	.37
Draft improvements / Ceiling view	.37
Design – Rendering	.38

Part definition- Identical coordinate systems

The wood define part function offer new options in order to manage the part orientation in the Sawing, Drawing and machining tabs.

Now you can set some rules for the part orientation and position for draft and machining.

The first time you define à part with the wood function, the software create 2 axis, one for the length, one for the width.

These two axis are displayed with two arrows, one red for length, one green for width (we call this the sawing up coordinate system).

Now in 6.12 the fist definition optimises the Z orientation of this sawing up coordinate system. (The face containing the maximum of operations is show as a top view in the window).

Machining tab:



In the drawing tab:



It's now very important to control and manage the first sawing up coordinate system.

These two examples below will provide the same cutting list but not the same orientations for machining and positioning.



The former option "Orient main view from coordinate system" has been removed but can be put back with the configuration word ZWOO_D_DEFPART_DFT_KEEP_ISDRAFT at 1.

Define part on a component

The function "define part on a component" has been clarified:

1- When a part of a component is Defined with Detection [1], the part is no longer inserted in the assembly. This process was also rectified for in-place sub-set parts.

2- A component part composed of a single part is now visible in the tree.



3- The « characteristics » macro is now available on the different parts of a component and the panels.

Facade-Door-Harware-Simple Facade-Door-Wooden-Frame				
	Analyze			
p2 谷 Controls				
P4 😽 Visible = YES				
Barrier PS Characteristics				

4- User properties of define part function like property systems.

Multiple part types

It is now possible to attribute several types to a single part.

			۲
 -	۰.		Ŀ
			L
		~	
	-	r .	

In the part definition, a tab was added:

		Part types	
Available	Used		
Type:			
Hardware Wood Panel	ß		The "Available" column allows to selct predefined types in a configurable list from Tools Options in TopSolid'Wood configuration Bill of material Part type , or to create one manually:
			Type: CN Machining
			The "Used" column enables to see the different types applied to the part.
	<		The arrows \triangleright and \leq enable to shift from a column to the other.
		- 46	Used Panel CN Machining
eral types can thus t	be applied t	o the same	e part:

The typing of parts allows a more precise and quick selection during the multi draft, the sawingup files or machining files exports...

Improvement of woods configurator



defined in **Tools |Options** for all the configurators, multi draft, nesting, and machining export.

The filter can be selected in the lip bar after starting off the function:

Filter bom by criteria= Without hardware

The choice of the parts name is the second improvement.

The part name can be defined in the column of bill of materials "WOO_TREE_IDENTIFICATION". This column must be in the bill of material, declared in **Tools | Options** in **TopSolid'Wood Configuration | Files | Parts selection sorting**.



If no bill of material is declared in **Tools | Options**, the designation used is the one from the previous version.

The definition of the column is based on the same principle as « WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME » or « WOO_CODIFICATION » (see What's New 2008 p.19).

To view "designation – reference" in the selection window, the bill of material column must be made manually in the bom file as follow:

```
NAME=Part_name_configuration

"DEF=<WOO_TREE_IDENTIFICATION|$DESIGNATION$-$REFERENCE$>"

TYPE=STRING

ALIGN=LEFT

TITLE_ALIGN=LEFT

WIDTH=0.015

VISIBLE=YES

;
```

Thus, in the configurator selection window, parts are represented by their designations and their references:

List of parts Material Coating	
EXPAND ALL	BACK-UP
	•
	E
UPart selected	
Materiai = Daisa Coating = mat white paint	
ОК	Cancel

Another modification was made to the different selection windows, the buttons "Select manually" and "Select all parts" have been removed.

Matters and coatings	×
Selection type	
Cleet all parte-	
Select unitary parts	
 Select parts by material 	
Matters - Thickness >	-
Select by criterions	

The configuration word ZWOO_U_DIAL_EXP_SELECTION_ENABLE_ALL_AND_UNITARY_PARTS (by default at 0) can restore these two options if set up at 1.

Visibility of single unit components in selection windows

All parts of a single unit set can be seen in selection windows (matters, edges, laminates, properties). This function also exists in selection windows of multi draft, machining export, and nesting.

In **Tools | Options**, in the "**Configurations**" tab, a mode has been added: "**Single sets considered as sub-sets**". When this mode is checked, the sub-sets in single units can also be unfolded.



Panel on profile

It is now possible to create a panel on one or several parts, or on unconnected supports using a profile.

To do so, an option "On face" was added in the interface of the function panel.

By clicking on this function, the user can create a new contour in a profile or sketch mode, or by selecting one in the document.



Supports can then be selected. At least one support must compose the panel.



The user will then get back to the standard function panel, with the faces to laminate if the option was checked, and the edge configuration window.



Edges and laminates are created from the profile previously selected. The profile must be drawn on the base of the panel.

Panel improvements

The problem of laminates with inclined edges is now fixed. A part laminated with the panel function, with an inclined edge or a chamfer, will have a reported slope on the stratifies:



Over dimensions for panel supports

 \blacksquare It is now possible to choose the mode by default of over dimensions of the panel supports.

This setting can be made using the configuration word in the file topzwoo.cfg :

ZWOO_PANEL_PROP_OVERDIMS_MODE

By default, the configuration word is at 0, therefore Topsolid process will not be modified. It must be changed to 106 for instance, if the "edge shape" mode wants to be used.

Consequently, during the creation of a panel, the over dimension mode is automatically defined.

Sizes	Values	Modes	Over dime
Length	350.0mm	edge shape	Omm
Width	250.0mm	edge shape	Omm
Thickness	19.0mm	edge shape	Omm

The numbers for each mode are as follow:

>	0	Additional
>	1	Proportional
>	2	Fixed
>	100	Cutting-up abacus
>	103	Machining abacus
>	106	Edge shape

This configuration word functions even if the configuration word

ZWOO_PROP_OVERDIMS_MODE (corresponding to the chosen mode during the part definition) is used.

Turning from a sketch

It is now possible to create a turning part using sketches. Until now, only profiles were managed.





Insert of extruded components

A new function enables to insert extruded components. This function is in **Wood | Other** process | Extruded components.



The Topsolid'Wood library was completed with many different extruded parts.



The extruded components used by default can be changed in **Tools | Options** in **TopSolid'Wood configuration | Files | Assemblies**:



Improvement of the constrained block

The function **CONSTRAINED BLOCK** has now an automatic mode AUTOMATIC enabling to position a block by selecting a single reference face.

The block is automatically trimmed by the closest faces. A shelf can be designed in one click for instance.



If necessary, graphic handles allow to select manually trimmed faces and to fix the position of the block.

By clicking the left handle *is*, the shelf can be automatically resized by selecting another face.



Q

You can use Wood definition function after creation with :

D_SH_BLOCK_ZWOO_CONSTR_BOX 1



You can use points to dimension the bloc.



You can define the two distribution faces as drivers to use distribution in components.

Automatic assembly

This new version contains a new function, "Automatic assembly", which can be found in Wood | Other processes.

This function works with the same operational principles of TopSolid'Wood's assembly functions (Dowel assembly, screw ...). Moreover, it enables to assemble several parts at the same time, using several components associated with several propagations.

Assemblies' configuration must be done in **Tools | Options** in **Automatic assembly**.

Application configuration	
Configuration	Automatic assembly
in a TopSolid Wood configuration	Bules
Altributes	
🚽 💼 Billoi material	Add tale
🔛 🔛 Multi drilings	
Piopagation	
- Generations configuration	
(Automalic assembly)	Delete rule
🖌 🍊 Iritiaization	
Edge / Laninate	
Matters overvaluations definition	
i Uratt i Principaliti	
Line FICS	
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
Disnlay	🔰 🔨 👘 Delote component
Picking	
🛓 🧶 Colors	
- 🗂 Visualisation options	Assenblage Tourillons + Excercipazes
Bontcut key	Componention de Matterionation Production Contraction Destring Michaese (2) Centered Mick pass
Rendering option#	
User information	
Parameter	
Sketch	
Dimension	
🗓 🚽 Constraint	
in T lext	
👜 – 🖉 – Note	
Predefined index	
🐘 🛱 Table	
Partial tolerance reference	
Ling Liconcincal tolerance	
	OK Cancel

The button

Add rule

enables to add and to name a rule.

It is then possible to choose a component to use in the rule:



It is possible to use all TopSolid assembly components, as well as the assembly kits and nonlinear assembly templates (see above, p.12).

Once the component is selected, it is necessary to choose a propagation and the position of the component (centred or not).

Component-code	Matter-coating	Predefined propagation	Centring thickness (Z)	Centered thickness
Smooth pin - 35x8	-	No propagation 👻	•	X
		No propagation		
		Smooth pin Eccentric		
		Locolulo		

The predefined propagation list is defined in Tools | Options | TopSolid'Wood Configuration | Propagations configuration.

Hence, it is possible to select several components using several propagations:

Smooth pin + Wood eccentric	:			
Component-code	Matter-coating	Predefined propagation	Centring thickness (Z)	Centered thickness
Smooth pin - 35x8	-	Smooth pin	•	X
Wood eccentric assembly		Eccentric		Х
∢		III		•

Once the rule is created, the function "Automatic assembly" can be used.

Selection of parts is done at the beginning of the function, in the selection window commonly used in the various configurators of TopSolid'Wood.

MAIN ASSEMBLY Depth: MULTI LEVEL - Filter bom by criteria= no filter	 Select elements to use:
Automatic assembly	×
Rules > Smooth pin + Wood eccentric	
Selection type	The rule is selected at the top
 Select mandally Select parts by material 	corresponds to the ones alrea
Matters - Thickness > Melamine - 19mm	defined in Tools Options.
Select by criterions	
Criterions	The parts are selected using
Material > acier	different criterions of the
Coating > beech	TopSolid'Wood windows
Thickness > 19mm	
Property > Designation	
EXPAND ALL BACK-UP	
List of parts 1 Kitchen cabinet 1 Shelf2 1 Back	E
Aissler Software	18

After selecting the parts to assemble, the user selects the start face for the propagation:

Start face:

The centring sense should then be chosen :

AUTOMATIC CENTRING Centring sense:

In this case, the centring sense will be vertical, it can be defined:

- -**Manually:** if the arrow is going down, the reference faces will be the top faces of the parts ; if the arrow is going up, the reference faces will be bottom faces of the parts.
- -Automatically: by using the button "AUTOMATIC CENTRING".

OK OUTSIDE FACE INSIDE FACE

The user will either click Ok to confirm or outside faces/ insides faces like reference faces.

A cabinet preview allows to approve the different faces selected:

OK Click on arrow to invert direction or on face to add or suppress assemblies:



The red arrows allow to choose and confirm the direction of each propagation.

DK After validation every selected parts are assembled.







Nonlinear assembly

From this version, it is possible to assemble parts using nonlinear propagation templates.

The user has to build the assembly template in a new design file, creating a new parameter for the cabinet depth:



In the function **Wood | Define | Define assembly template**, the button ADVANCED has been added.

This button enables to define the set and the driver for the cabinet depth once the assembly template is created. These two operations must be done in the component making.

The key-point must then be defined with the help of the function **Assembly | Define component | Define Key-points**:



The assembly template must be saved like a standard component using the function **Assembly | Define component | Edit/save template**.

Afterwards, this component will be able to be utilized with the functions:



The multi-component function has been converted to include this kind of component, considering the depth parameter of the parts to assemble.

Blum library

A new component library "BLUM HARDWARE" is available in this version. It can be used like a standard library, and is essential to make use of the new function « DYNAPLAN ».

This new function can be found into **Wood | Dynaplan.** It will enable to import standard cabinets or user cabinets made in Dynaplan into TopSolid.

When starting the function, the following window opens to choose the cabinet to insert:

DYNAPLAN cabinets standard		×
DYNAPLAN cabinets sta	ndard:	
CABINET_BLUM	•	
Cabinets:		\sim
CABINET_BLUM		
	OK Cancel	

This library contains all the standards furniture of the company. Once the piece of furniture is selected, Dynaplan opens automatically.



All modifications can be done from the Dynaplan interface (cabinet dimension, hardware...).

However, the user must save the cabinet when modifications are done (non saved modifications will not be imported into TopSolid). It must be saved in the repertory proposed by Dynaplan without modification of the name.

Save Carcase	
Save:	
In project:	POOL
Carcase name:	blum
Piece:	1
Info: Enter a name fo the carcase. Yo and change the	or the current carcase and then save u can also choose existing carcase names m. Cancel

After saving the cabinet, Dynaplan can be closed. The cabinet is then positioned in TopSolid from an origin point:



CURRENT COORDINATE SYSTEM or

If there is another cabinet in the document, TopSolid'Wood offers an automatic mode enabling to select a face near the origin point.

Origin position= AUTOMATIC

The cabinet is then inserted in TopSolid'Wood:



Once inserted, all parts are defined and machined, and hardware is positioned. Coordinate systems related to the imported cabinet are created to allow the placement of other cabinets. It is also possible to create your own cabinet library. The library declaration is done by adding a configuration word into the topzwoo.cfg :

ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_STANDARD BEB "D:\Projects612\Tests\New functions\Dynaplan\BEB_CABINET"

Configuration word Standard name "Standard path"

The associated repertory must contain .bpf files (Dynaplan format files) or .bxf files (Dynaplan export format files).

If the cabinet is saved in the library under a .bxf format, it must not contain hardware. Otherwise, it will not be possible to upload it in the interface.

If a bitmap file with the same name exists, it will be visible in the window selection.

By default, the realised files with the Dynaplan interface are saved in the following repertory:

C:\Program Files\DYNALOG\Dynaplan\Kommissionen\POOL

.bpf and .bxf files must be moved manually in the library created previously. During the function starting off, the user library will be visible in the drop-down menu:



The library structure is defined by the user in Windows. The number of folders and sub folders is not limited and the components are not necessary at the same level.

For all libraries, the cabinet modification offers to either change the definition coordinate system or to change the placement position point, or to modify a cabinet using the function CABINET.

Caution! In the last case, Dynaplan is started off automatically. However, the modified cabinet in Dynaplan is considered as a brand new cabinet and all modifications done initially in TopSolid are lost (Edges, matters, operations...).

The designation, type, matter and coating can be set up by configuration using the following configuration words:

Designation:

```
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_TOP_DESIGNATION (défaut : "Dessus")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_BOTTOM_DESIGNATION (défaut : "Dessous")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_LEFTSIDE_DESIGNATION (défaut : "Coté gauche")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_RIGHTSIDE_DESIGNATION (défaut : "Coté droit")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_BACK_DESIGNATION (défaut : "Fond")
```

Type:

```
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_PANEL_TYPE (défaut : "Panneau")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_BACK_TYPE (défaut : "Fond")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_FRONT_TYPE (défaut : "Façade")
```

Matter and coating of the cabinet structure:

```
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_PANEL_MATTER (défaut : "$melaminate")
ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_PANEL_COATING (défaut : "")
```

Matter and coating of the cabinet back:

ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_BACK_MATTER ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_BACK_COATING

Matter and coating of the cabinet facades:

ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_FRONT_MATTER ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_FRONT_COATING

Matter and coating of the cabinet other parts:

ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_DEFAULT_MATTER ZWOO_DPROCESS_BLUM_DEFAULT_COATING

These configuration words are to be placed into the topzwoo.cfg file, which is by default in: C:\Missler\Config\V612

This function can be utilized from the time the Dynalog 2.8 version is installed.

Assembly simplification

In tool option you can configure the default inclusion representation value. Of course you must have defined a simplified representation to be able to see it.



Draft file name



It is now possible to set the multi draft file name.

Its functioning is the same as the one of the column « WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME » and so identical to the functioning of « WOO_TREE_IDENTIFICATION », as explained below.

The draft file name will be made by using a new bill of material column « WOO_DFT_FILE_NAME ».

This bill of material must be declared in **Tools | Options** in **TopSolid'Wood Configuration | Files | Parts selection sorting**.



Here is an example of a draft file formatting name (designation – matter – part ID):

NAME=DFT_FILE_NAME "DEF=<WOO_DFT_FILE_NAME|**\$DESIGNATION\$-\$MATTER\$-\$ELEMENT_IDENTIFIER\$**>" TYPE=STRING ALIGN=LEFT TITLE_ALIGN=LEFT WIDTH=0.015 VISIBLE=YES :

Hence, all drawings will have automatically the same name:



Back-melamine-5853 Document TopSolid'Draft 62.6 Ko



Left-melamine-61 Document TopSolid'Draft 74,1 Ko

Middle-melamine-5817

Middle1-melamine-5931

Document TopSolid'Draft

89.4 Ko

82,4 Ko

Document TopSolid'Draft



Document TopSolid'Draft 88,3 Ko Right-melamine-93

Middle2-melamine-5818

Bottom-melamine-164

82.7 Ko

Document TopSolid'Draft



Right-melamine-93 Document TopSolid'Draft 76,4 Ko



Shelf-melamine-5760 Document TopSolid'Draft 84,3 Ko



Top-melamine-133 Document TopSolid'Draft 75,5 Ko



Owner designation and reference for in-place parts

It is now possible to use the owner information (designation, references ...) for in-place designed parts.

The owner notion corresponds most of the time to the name or reference of the project or to the cabinet. Until now, this information could not be retrieved from the exports, configurators, and multi drafts.

This notion corresponds to the properties of root (or direct) owner designation (or reference).

Defined functions > ROOT OWNER DESIGNATION

Hence, this property enables to determine draft file names, machining file names or tree identification:

	Set definition
	Designation : Kitchen cabinet
	Reference : MC 650
	Supplier >
	Processing >
·>	Part category>

WOO_DFT_FILE_NAME|**\$DESIGNATION\$-\$DESIGNATION|OWNER_PRJ\$-\$REFERENCE|OWNER_PRJ\$** WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME|" " " " WOO_TREE_IDENTIFICATION|" " " "

Back-Kitchen cabinet	-MC 650 I'Draft
Bottom-Kitchen cabi	Back-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650
Type : Document TopSoli	Type : mpr File Type
Left-Kitchen cabinet-	Bottom-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650
Type : Document TopSoli	Type : mpr File Type
Right-Kitchen cabine	Left-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650 Type : mpr File Type
Shelf1-Kitchen cabin	Right-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650
Type : Document TopSoli	Type : mpr File Type
Shelf2-Kitchen cabin	Shelf1-Kitchen cabinet
Type : Document TopSoli	Type : mpr File Type Shelf1-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650 Shelf1-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650 Shelf1-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650
Shelf-Kitchen cabine	Shelf2-Kitchen cabinet Type : mpr File Type Shelf-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650 Bottom-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650 Shelf-Kitchen cabinet-MC 650
	Shelf-Kitchen cabinet-I Type : mpr File Type

File name recovery for the 2nd machining file name

TopSolid'Wood 2011 enables the user to manage the name of the second machining file the same way as the first file name.

The file name is calculated in a bill of material column with the following property: DEF=<WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME2|. ..>

Its functioning is identical to the one of the column « WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME ». The column set up defines the file name structure.

Hence, the user can choose the machining file name for parts with two machining files:



Below is the extract of the bom file enabling to manage the name of the two machining files:

NAME=Machining_file_1 "DEF=<WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME|\$DESIGNATION\$-\$REFERENCE\$-\$ELEMENT_IDENTIFIER\$-1>" TYPE=STRING ALIGN=LEFT TITLE_ALIGN=LEFT WIDTH=0.015 VISIBLE=YES ; NAME=Machining_file_2 "DEF=<WOO_CAM_FILE_NAME2|\$DESIGNATION\$-\$REFERENCE\$-\$ELEMENT_IDENTIFIER\$-2>" TYPE=STRING ALIGN=LEFT TITLE_ALIGN=LEFT WIDTH=0.015 VISIBLE=YES ;

Operations priority for machining and exports

In the 2011 version of TopSolid'Wood, a new function "Operations priority" was added. It allows to organise the operation priority for machining. This function can be found into **Wood | Operations Priority.**

Priority	
Selection type Select manualy Select all operations Select operations with same priority Priorities > 1 Derations > Root	
Priority 1 APPLY Shell, 1. root Shell, 1. root 911253, 2. slot G11253, 2. slot Gameter = 8mm, depth = 12mm 910993, 3. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 20mm G10964, 5. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 24mm 910984, 6. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 24mm G10981, 8. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 24mm 910986, 7. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 24mm G10981, 8. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 12mm 910985, 9. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 12mm G10855, 9. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 12mm 910985, 10. hole, diameter = 8mm, depth = 12mm G10855, 12. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 12mm 910983, 11. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm G10858, 12. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm 910933, 11. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm G10858, 13. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm 910930, 14. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm G10920, 14. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm 910920, 14. hole, diameter = 5mm, depth = 15mm	•
0 Selected operation OK Cancel	

This function starts with the selection of the part on which operations will be prioritized:

Shape to modify:

Operations can then be selected manually, by priority or by type:

Select manually	
Select all operations	

Select	operations with same priority
Priorities >	1

Select operations with same type								
0 perations >	Root 🔹							
	Root							
	Slot							
	Drill							

The manually selection (and deselection) can be done by right clicking in the operation list:

List of operations	
	Select
@10905, 3, hc	Deselect
	Select operations with same type
@10304, 0, flore, are	motor – omm, doput – zmmi

The priority number is then attributed from the button

Priority : 1 APPLY

Priority 1 corresponds to the first operation to be done. Priority 0 enables to cancel the priority applied to the part.

The tree operation list is sorted in increasing priorities, either the most prioritized or the least prioritized. It is also updated at each priority modification.

If two operations use the same priority number, they will be completed according to the way they are sorted in the tree.

The "drag and drop" also enables to sort the operations in the tree.



Machining exports export operations according to their priorities. Operations without priority are the last to be exported.

This function allows to prioritize the machining order during the export to TopSolid'WoodCam, machining interfaces (Woodwop, Xilog, Panelcam) and DXF 2D^{1/2} interfaces.

Design – Parameters improvements



It is now possible to predefine the values of the parameters

During the creation or modification of a parameter in the advanced options a new button PREDEFINED VALUES=0 was added.

It enables to define a list of predefined values for a parameter, and to associate a designation to this value:

Predefined value	25	×
🛛 Only those va	alues	
Value	Designation	
16	Thickness 16	
19	Thickness 19	
22	Thickness 22	
	OK Cancel	

The option Conly those values allows to choose among predefined values only, during the modification of a parameter or the insertion of a component containing drivers with predefined values.



Predefined value of parameters can also be determined from the function **Parameters | Edit list** using the button Predefined values.



Boolean parameters:

The Boolean driver parameter enables to manage a driver parameter at two values (True/False).

This type of parameter is particularly interesting to deactivate a component or an operation. Boolean driver parameter defines itself in the construction tree when editing the drivers set:



When the drivers is asked, you'll now have a button (Yes/No).



Automatic Drivers:

When a asked driver finds the same name in the assembly you'll find a new option AUTOMATIC.

You'll also find a new list with some parameters of the document.

OK MEASURE Thickness= @59=19mm	AUTOMATIC->Thickness=19.000mm	t/Thickness	J
		t/Thickness	15
		w/Width	Т
		L/Length	

Optional driver parameter:

In the parameters list, it is now possible to make optional to fill in the driver parameter.

P	arameters list														×
3	Sort by : [default Remove Table Export and print] Define driver Columns														
	Min / Max [Predefined values] [Tabulated tolerance] Copy tabulated tol]														
	Jouble click on	new parameter to creat	e a parameter.									1			
Ш	Name	Designation	Display unit	Expression	Value	Minimu	Maximu	Tolerance	Standard tol	Minimum tol	Maximum tol	Effective value	Туре	Use	Driver
Ш	9	Length	mm		500mm							NOMINAL	parameter	1	Yes 🔻
Ш	🖳 d	Depth	mm		350mm							NOMINAL	parameter	1	Yes
Ш	S∰ h	Height	mm		600mm							NOMINAL	parameter	1	No
	😌 ha	handles			1							NOMINAL	parameter	1	optional
ľ	′es 🔻														
Y	'es														
Ν	lo														
C)ptional														

Consequently, the driver will not be enquired during the component insertion. However, it will appear in the drivers set of the tree, and could thus be modified.

Design – Automatic reference (TopSolid'Quote need this)

A bill of material can help you to generate references, in this example it's possible to use the property part type to say how to generate references for parts.

Like with the woo codification you can create rule to make your own reference.

```
NAME=REFERENCE

"DEF=<REFERENCE><WOO_CODIFICATION|$MATTER$_$PART_THICKNESS|Unit:4|Prec:2$TY

PE(Panel)><WOO_CODIFICATION|-$DESIGNATION$-

$PART_LENGTH|Unit:4|Prec:2$TYPE(Profile)><WOO_CODIFICATION|$DESIGNATION$-

$COMPO_CODE$TYPE(Profile)>"

TYPE=STRING

ALIGN=LEFT

TITLE_ALIGN=LEFT

WIDTH=0.015

VISIBLE=YES

.
```

In this example below:

> If part type= Profile > the reference of the part will be the Designation + Length (in mm 2 digits).

> If part type= Panel > the reference will be : Matter + Thickness (mm 2 digits).

> If part type = Hardware the reference will be : Designation + catalog code.

Shelve	Oak-copper_19.00	Oak-copper	0.41	0.25	0.02	-	Panel
Screw	Screw 3,5x9,5	steel		<u>-</u>	-	3,5x9,5	Hardware
Profil Alu small	Profil Alu small -696.00	steel	0.7	0.02	0.02	_	Profile
Mounting plate Expando Dis 0	177H5400E	steel	-	_	_	-	
DESIGNATION	REFERENCE	MATIÈRE	LENGTH	WIDTH	THICKNESS	CODE	TYPE

Design – Publishings

Tool | Option allows to set the default values for the visibility, the Layer and the names of Auto publishing.

a csei mioniarion		Dublishings					
🗄 🛃 Coordinate system		i ubiisriirigs	- Automatic publications				
		O Do not display publishings	Publishina1 X-			Left	
Axes							
Exploded axis			Publishing2 X+	+	:	Right	
Sketch		O Display main publishings	Dublishing 2 V			Front	2
			r ubiisriirigo r-			ITTOIR	-0
🗄 🦵 Constraint	-	Circlau all publishings	Publishing4 Y+	+	:	Back	
	=	O Display all publisi lings	D.4545.457			D-H-H	
I III → / Note			Publishingo Z-			Bottom	
Predefined index		Laver creation : 10	Publishina6 Z+	+	:	Тор	
🕕 🧱 Table			-				
🖶 🖳 Tolerance reference		Miscellaneous					
🗄 🔎 Partial tolerance reference							
🖶 🛄 Geometrical tolerance							
T Predefined properties		Always display constituents in tree	Apply serial operations on components				
🚽 👘 Multi criteria filter							
🖨 🔑 Component		Reconnection handles					
- 😍 Attributes		reconnector nancies					
Components management		Show handles					
User library							

Do not forget that its possible to use automatic publishing on a main set but also in a alternative set to improve performances.

Design – Database material

It's now possible to manage :

- Multi-level material management.
- Grain information in definition.
- User or Group configurations.

A database saved in 6.11 will not be compatible with previous versions of Topsolid.

Material editor		×
Name	> Maple-norwegian	🖉 🔍 User 💿 Group
Designation	:	Delete category
Reference	:	
Supplier	:	
Density (kg/dm3)	: 1	- T3
Density tolerence	: 0	Hatching pattern :
Young modulus (Pa)	: 0	
Poisson's ratio	: 0	
Expansion coefficient (degC-	I): 0	
Elastic limit (Pa)	: 0	Texture :
Shear Modulus (N m2)	: 0	The second
Shrinkage factor	: 1	
Conductivity (W/m.degC)	: 0	Colour
Thermic inertia (J/m3.degC)	: 0	Specular :
Translucency (0-1)	: 0	Grain orientation
Specularity shininess	: 10	✓ Use as material ✓ Use as coating
ОК	Cancel	Save Delete

Nesting – Supports selection

From this version, supports are automatically offered in the selection window.

Supports are automatically chosen according to the parts' matter and thickness to nest. If several are proposed, the user will have to choose from the list.

Nesting description - Rectangular nesting 17 parts	×
Parts Supports Nesting	
Reference Designation]
TM19 Telha melamine 19	Add standard
	Add
	Suppress
	- II

The user does not need anymore to choose the support while creating the nests.

Nesting – Boards management

In the result file of the nesting, boards from the same group are moved in X and Y and all levels used are activated.

o toposia (oca) by masici politikaci (oca) in the operative activation of the operation of	
🚯 File Edit Parameter Curve Shape Assembly Kinematics Dynamics Tools Attribute Analyze Piping CONF_TOOLS Wood Sheet metal Image Wood Planner Tools Window Help 📃	8 X
□ 🗗 🕞 🖬 ▾ 🗊 🦃 🔰 🖉 🏈 🔯 🍣 🦓 🗳 😁 北 🦎 🦎 🖬 🗬 🖄 ▾ 沙 ▾ 🖾 🚔 ▾ 🖨 ▾ 🔳 ▾ ▾ ▾ 🖊 ▾ 🕅 ▾	
↓ + ≤ + 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤ 2 ≤	ŝ
Choose a function in the menu	
Nesting Automatic nesting. X=+252750(Y=-427500 Z=+000,000 Mode=30 TxH=3.5 Tol= 0.2 Or Tra=0 Lay= 0 Dec=3 Inv=Hid Mes=Elt Mat=balsa Celling	g= Show
012345678910111213141516171819	

Nesting – Many improvements

Manual nesting in "rectangular" mode. During a manual nesting, rectangular mode is now available.



No need to save after each level modification in « one file result » mode.

Close the result file in "multi files" mode. The user has now the possibility to close the files created in "multi file" using the configuration word **D_NESTING_CLOSE_FILES** at 1.

Addition of a new configuration word **D_NESTING_COMPLEX_ONE_PART_STRATEGY** allowing, if at 0, to switch off the "one part only" strategy which can present performance issues in some cases (big parts).

By default this configuration word is at 1, meaning that the "one part" strategy is automatically used when a single type of part must be placed (improvement for "U" or "L" shaped parts).

Draft improvements / Exceptions

It's possible to use a new layer filter in Draft exceptions.

Layers used in a 3d document can now be useful for showing/hiding element in a 2d view.

Exceptions are now available in section and full section.

			Full Section A-A
View modification		×	
Coordinate system Exceptions Other options View	N		
Exceptions are local to this view			
Filter name Filter type Descri	ption		
Layer BY LAYER			
ut ut			
			e de la cala a gr <u>a</u> ga, a compositor a cala de la cala
List of elements to consider for the filter			
	Part exclusion	> NO EXCEPTION 🔹	
All elements except	Smooth edges	> NO EXCEPTION 🔹	
	Hidden lines	> NO EXCEPTION -	
Layer	All edges Edges		
L Malle & Elect	Smooth edges Hidden lines	>	
	Visible lines	>	FULL Section C-C
	Hidden lines		
	Hatch lines		
Decorative items	Cuteart		
	Chaded part		
	anaded part	> NU EAGEFHUN	
OK	Cancel		
		-	

Draft improvements / Ceiling view

A new view is now available to interior design room, it allows to project the ceiling of a top view inside the room.





Design – Rendering



New kind of lights are available (SKY, AREA and WINDOW):

Туре=	POSITIONAL	-
	AMBIENT	
	POSITIONAL	
	DIRECTIONAL	
	SPOT	
	SKY	
	ARIEA	
	WINDOW	

These three additional types were added to create images of better quality.

The sky will be used to symbolize the lighting of the sun, the area type to light up the entire face of an object, and the window type to symbolize the outside lightening through a window.

New rendering techniques were added to have a larger choice:

